
BOROUGH OF CARROLL VALLEY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Monday, October 2, 2023 – 7:00 P.M. 
Borough Office 

A G E N D A 

1. Approval of Meeting Minutes
a. Minutes of the September 5, 2023, meeting

2. Open to the Public

3. New Business

a. Fifty Properties, LLC Land Development Plan

4. Old Business
a. Keeping of Domesticated Chickens
b. Ordinance Revising Chapter 27: Zoning regarding Short-Term Rentals

5. Adjournment



BOROUGH OF CARROLL VALLEY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 – 7:00 P.M. 
BOROUGH OFFICE 

MINUTES 

 Chairman Michael Wight called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  The attendance was as follows: 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEMBERS 

BOROUGH OFFICIALS, ETC. 

Present 
John Schubring, Vice Chairman 
Sara Laird 
Michael Wight, Chair 
Jeff Pannebaker 
Brion Fitzgerald 
David Lillard 

Absent 
Owen Phelan 
Douglas Browning 
Bret Robinson 

David Hazlett Borough Manager 
Gayle Marthers, Asst. Borough Manager 
Amanda Bell, Asst. Borough Secretary 

CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 7, 2023 PLANNING 
COMMISSION MEETING 
***J. Schubring moved, J. Pannebaker seconded, that the Commission accept the minutes of the 
Planning Commission Meeting of August 7, 2023 as amended.  Motion passed unanimously. 

OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
The following citizen asked to be heard: 
Ms. Trish Rowe of 6395 Fairfield Road, Carroll Valley, resident in favor of Short-Term Rentals. 

NEW BUSINESS 
Vail/Ski Liberty Operating Corporation Subdivision and Land Development Plan 
Tabled until October meeting per request from Vail Resorts. 

Zoning Ordinance Recommended Changes – from resident 
Members reviewed the recommendation from the resident.  Following much discussion, Members 
agreed by consensus there are no recommendations to Council at this time due to changes being 
already addressed in the zoning and borough ordinances. 

Review of Ordinance #1-2012: Keeping of Domesticated Chickens 
Lengthy discussion ensued noting the following: 

• Increased setback in the front
• Possibility of being allowed in side yard or interior yard
• Directly to the rear of any permanently affixed structure.

Members agreed by consensus to have Mr. Hazlett revise the ordinance to allow more flexibility into 
location of the chicken coops. They requested the revision be sent to Council. 



2 

OLD BUSINESS 
Ordinance Revising Chapter 27: Zoning regarding Short-Term Rentals 
Members reviewed the responses from the Borough Solicitor.  Following much discussion, Members 
agreed by consensus to have Mr. Hazlett edit the proposed ordinance and remove unnecessary 
paragraphs that can not hold the borough liable.  

ADJOURNMENT 
*** The meeting adjourned at 8:56PM via motion made by J. Pannebaker and seconded by D. Lillard 
that carried unanimously.   

Amanda Bell, Asst. Borough Secretary 





f�KPI 
• TECHNOLOGY 

Engineering 
Surveying 

Planning 

Civil & Environmental Engineering Consultants www.kpitechnology.net 

Memo to: 

Memo from: 

Subject: 

Date: 

cc: 

MEMORANDUM 

Carrol Valley Borough 

Brandon Guiher, P.E.13 G-
- d Leah Heine, Senior Engineering Techniciat?7{� 

Subdivision and Land Development Plan Review 
Fifty Properties, LLC 
Final Land Development Plan 
Fairfield Road Fairfield, PA 17320 
Plan date: July 25, 2023 

September 29, 2023 

Lee Royer & Associates 
PMCA 

The plan proposes to construct a new 70' x 150' building to contain commercial uses and 20 
apartments. It also proposes the continued use of an existing 3 unit apartment building. The 
plan includes a 40 space parking lot with one ( 1) new entrance and the use of one ( 1) existing 
entrance. Stormwater will consist of an underground infiltration bed and a raingarden and 
associated inlets and piping. The plan also proposes new connections to public water and 
sewer. The lot is just over 2 acres and is located in the Community Core (CC) zoning district. It 
is also partially located in the Riparian Buffer Overlay District and the Airport Overlay zone. A 
small portion of floodplains are located at the northern end of the property at the Tom's Creek 
tributary. From our review we note the following items: 

Zoning Ordinance Comments 
(Comments of the engineer regarding zoning are subject to review or interpretation of the 

Zoning Officer and Borough Solicitor.) 

1. It appears the developer is proposing to utilize the Preferred Development Standards of 
section 803 (use of higher floor area ratio and maximum lot coverage). It should be shown 
that these standards are being met. Additional architectural information is required. 
(803.A.4) 

2. The Zoning Officer should determine if the requirements of a "build to" line are being met. 
(804.D.1) 

3. The Riparian Buffer Overlay area should be delineated on the plans. (1101) It should also 
be shown that the Buffer Restoration Area meets the requirements of 1101.C 

200 South Second Street• Sunbury, PA 17801 

tel (570) 286-3176 fax (570) 286-2964 

Knoebel, Picarelli, Inc. 

143 Carlisle Street• Gettysburg, PA 17325 

tel (717) 339-0612 fax (717) 339-0717 

One E. Harrisburg Street• Dillsburg, PA 17019 

tel (717) 502-0884 fax (717) 502-0945 



Carroll Valley Borough 
Fifty Properties, LLD- Final Subdivision Plan 
September 29, 2023 

page 2 

4. Parking for apartment buildings does not appear to be in accordance with 1501.A.3.a, as 
parking is not located to the rear of the apartment building. 

5. The intended use of the commercial area in the proposed building should be noted so 
parking space numbers can be confirmed. (1601) 

6. Within the parking lot, pedestrian walkways or sidewalks shall be provided. (1602.C.3.e) 

7. The parking lot illumination standards shall be met. Light details and photometrics plan are 
required.(1602.G) 

8. The plans should note that any proposed signage shall meet the requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance. ( 1707) 

9. The existing 3-unit apartment building should be registered as a pre-existing non-conforming 
structure due to the front setback. 

Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance Comments 

10. Adams County Planning comments should be considered. (301) 

11. It should be determined if a waiver for a preliminary plan submission is required. (321) 

12. The engineer's seal and signature should be executed on the approved plans. (403.F) 

13. Please add the property boundary/location on the location map. (403.H) 

14. The approved plans shall be acknowledged/executed by the owners. (406.M) 

15. Note 7 indicates contours are from PASDA lidar mapping. Given the nature of the project 
(improvements near property lines, grading/stormwater connections to a state road, public 
water and sewer, etc.), the property boundary and topography shall be the result of a 
property survey. (403.L) 

16. We were unable to find reference to the lot size for the subject property on the plans. (403.1) 

17. The existing septic drainfield and well locations should be identified. (403.M) 

18. Please be consistent with the contour intervals. We would prefer 1 foot intervals. (403.K) 

19. All easements should be labeled as existing or proposed. (504) 

20. Proposed signage should be included on the plan. (602.J) 

21. A PennDOT HOP will be required for the proposed entrance. It should also be confirmed 
with PennDOT if the existing entrance is adequate based on the change/increase in use. 



Carroll Valley Borough 
Fifty Properties, LLD- Final Subdivision Plan 
September 29, 2023 

page 3 

22. Penn DOT HOP's will be required for the proposed utility crossings/installations in the right
of-way (ie: water, sanitary sewer, storm drains). 

23. Additional plan details (signage, lighting, space striping, ADA parking, tree planting, etc.) are 
required. 

24. With regard to the proposed entrances we acknowledge that access is to a State Road, 
hOWQVOr, wo note the following for con�ideration: 
a. Sight distances and a clear sight triangle sized appropriately for Fairfield Road 

traffic/speeds) should be provided for the proposed entrances. The current clear sight 
triangle appears to intersect a proposed bank. (406.L, 529) 

b. It has become common that PennDOT requires the municipality to be responsible for 
stormwater facilities located in their right-of-way. The Borough should take this into 
consideration. 

c. PennDOT permit plans should be provided to the Borough for review. 
d. At a minimum, stop signs should be provided for vehicles exiting the parking lot. 

25. Proof of plan approval by York Water and the Sewer Authority is required. It appears the 
water line installation will require a stream crossing permit. 

26. Sewer and water lines and easements are shown across the Borough's property. It should 
be confirmed that this is acceptable to the Borough. 

27. The Borough should consider if a recreation area or fee in lieu of should be applied to this 
project. (502.3.A) 

28. Sewage Facilities Planning (Exemption) approval is required. (569) 

29. A drainage easement should be provided for the Tom's Creek Tributary. (582) 

30. An approved E&S Plan/NPDES Permit are required.(601.3) 

31. Bonding of related improvements is required. A cost estimate should be submitted for 
review. (338) 

Stormwater Management Comments 

Due to the extent and nature of the prior comments we have not fully reviewed the stormwater 
management at this time. Following confirmation that the layout will not change, we will 
complete our stormwater review. 



MEMORANDUM 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION  

FROM: DAVID HAZLETT, BOROUGH MANAGER 

SUBJECT: RES CHICKENS/PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE:  9/29/2023 

   CC:  GAYLE MARTHERS 

The Borough Council discussed the issue regarding residential chickens and that some properties do not have 
a “backyard” suitable to meet the ordinance. The council reviewed the recommendation received from the 
Planning Commission last month. 

The Borough Council asked the planning commission to evaluate the language that Chicken Pen and Coop's 
be permitted to be placed as per the Zoning Ordinance permissions for Accessory Structures in the 
underlying zoning district of the applicant property.  

Borough Council’s recommended ordinance revision would look like this: 

g. All chicken coop/pen structures must comply with the setback regulations for the underlying
zoning district for Accessory Structures.  A person shall not keep Chickens in any location on the
property other than in the backyard. For purposes of this section, "backyard" means that portion of 
a lot enclosed by the property's rear lot line and the side lot lines to the points where the side lot
lines intersect with an imaginary line established by the rear of the single-family structure and
extending to the side lot lines.

h. No covered enclosure or fenced enclosure shall be located closer than 25 feet to any property line
of an adjacent property;

i. A covered enclosure or fenced enclosure shall not be located closer than 50 feet to any residential
structure on an adjacent property.

j. For purposes of this section, adjacent property means all parcels of property that the applicant's
property comes into contact with at 1 or more points, except for parcels that are legally adjacent to
but are in fact separated from the applicant's property by a public or private street.

*** As a reminder, the proposed accessory structure amendment reads: 

  Accessory buildings shall be permitted in accordance with the following requirements. 

A. Accessory buildings or structures shall only be authorized as an accessory to a principal building. Any parcel not
containing a primary structure is not permitted to have an accessory building or accessory structure.

B. Accessory buildings not permanently affixed to the land via footer/foundation and less than or equal to four
hundred (400) square feet in size shall be located no closer than ten (10) feet to any side or rear property line and
are not permitted within the front yard.

C. Accessory buildings not permanently affixed to the land via footer/foundation and greater than four hundred
(400) square feet in size shall be subject to the applicable setback requirements of the underlying zoning district
and are not permitted within the front yard.



Page 2 of  2 

 

D. Accessory buildings permanently affixed to the land via footer/foundation and less than or equal to four hundred 
(400) square feet in size shall be located no closer than ten (10) feet to any side or rear property line and are not 
permitted within the front yard. 

E. Accessory buildings permanently affixed to the land via footer/foundation and greater than four hundred (400) 
square feet in size shall be subject to the applicable setback requirements of the underlying zoning district and may 
be located within the front yard. 

F. Regardless of size, no accessory structure can be located within the front yard area between the primary structure 
and the public street. 

G. All accessory buildings shall be subject to the building height standard of the underlying zoning district. 

 
 For clarity, the previously advertised ordinance amendment regarding accessory structures and this 

proposed language would require the citizens at 8 Fawn Trail to relocate their chickens into one of 
the green-shaded areas. It would give them an additional 15 feet on the side and rear of the house. 
 

 



Short-Term Rentals Page 1 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
 Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

CARROLL VALLEY BOROUGH 

ADAMS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

Ordinance No.  __-2023 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF CARROLL VALLEY, ADAMS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 11 OF THE CARROLL VALLEY BOROUGH CODE OF ORDINANCES, ADDING A PART 2 TO 
REGULATE SHORT-TERM RENTALS. 

BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF CARROLL VALLEY, 
ADAMS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA, THAT CHAPTER 11 WILL BE AMENDED TO THE CARROLL VALLEY 
BOROUGH CODE OF ORDINANCES AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS, Short-Term Rentals of Dwellings have become a significant segment of the local tourism 
economy, and 

WHEREAS, Short-Term Rentals of Dwellings provide a community benefit by expanding the number and 
type of lodging facilities available and assist Owners of single-family homes by providing revenue which 
may be used for maintenance, upgrades, and deferred costs; and 

WHEREAS, while the majority of these Short-Term Rentals operate without a problem, there have been 
numerous complaints to the Borough regarding excessive noise, parking, litter, and concerns regarding 
security, public safety, and trespass,; and 

WHEREAS, the transitory nature of Occupants of Short-Term Rentals makes enforcement against the 
Occupants difficult,; and 

WHEREAS, the provisions of this Ordinance are necessary to prevent the continued burden on Borough 
and community services and impacts on residential neighborhoods posed by Short-Term Rentals,; and 

WHEREAS, the provisions of this Ordinance are necessary to provide for a system of inspections, the 
issuance and renewal of licenses, and to establish penalties for violations. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Borough Council of Carroll Valley Borough, 
Adams County, Pennsylvania, pursuant to the above authority, as follows:  

SECTION 1.  SHORT TITLE.  

This Ordinance shall be known as “The Short-Term Rental Ordinance of Carroll Valley Borough.” 

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 11.  

Part 2 of Chapter 11, entitled: “SHORT-TERM RENTALS,” is hereby created and added to the 
Code of Ordinances of Carroll Valley Borough to provide as follows: 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 2 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

Part 2 
SHORT-TERM RENTALS 

 
§ 204-1.  Title.  
 
This Chapter shall be known and may be cited as “The Short-Term Rental Ordinance of Carroll Valley 
Borough.” 
 
§ 204-2.  Authority.  
 
Under the authority of the Pennsylvania Borough Code (including, but not limited to, Articles XII, XXXII-
A, and XXXIII of such law including, but not limited to, Section 1202 subsections (1), (3), (4), (5), (8), (14) 
(15) (20) (61) and (65), Section 3204-A, and Section 3108), the following new ordinance text is hereby 
adopted as Part 2 of Chapter 11 in the Codified Ordinances of Carroll Valley Borough. 
 
§ 204-3.  Scope.  
 
The provisions of this Chapter shall apply to all residential Dwelling Units, conversions of nonresidential 
structures to residential dwellings, and all existing Premises within the Borough of Carroll Valley.  The 
Owner of the subject Premises shall be responsible for compliance with the provisions of this Chapter, 
and the Owner, Manager, or renting occupants’ failure to comply with this Chapter’s requirements shall 
be deemed noncompliance by the Owner. 
 
§ 204-4.  Definitions.  
 
As used in this Chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings.  If a term is not defined 
in this Chapter but is defined in the Borough’s Property Maintenance/Nuisance Code or Uniform 
Construction Codes, then that definition shall apply to this Chapter.  If a term is not defined in any of 
those codes but is defined elsewhere in the Borough Code, then the definition in such Chapter shall 
apply to this Chapter. 
 

BEDROOM -- A room or space designed to be used for sleeping purposes with two means of 
egress (one of which may be a window acceptable under the building code) and in close 
proximity to a bathroom.  Space used for eating, cooking, bathrooms, toilet rooms, closets, halls, 
storage or utility rooms, and similar uses are not considered bedrooms.  Space used or intended 
for general and informal everyday use, such as a living room, den, sitting room, or similar, is not 
to be considered a bedroom. 

 
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER (CEO) -- The Borough-appointed Code Enforcement Officer(s) has 
the duty to enforce this Chapter and the Code and any assistants or deputies appointed by the 
Borough.  At the discretion of the Borough Council, an independent entity or contractor may be 
appointed to enforce part or all of this function under this Chapter. 

 
DWELLING UNIT -- One or more rooms, occupied or intended for occupancy, as separate living 
quarters by a single family maintaining a household, the members of which have unrestricted 
access to all other parts thereof, with cooking, sleeping, and sanitary facilities provided therein, 
for the exclusive use of that single family.  For the purposes of this Chapter, this term shall be 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 3 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

used when referring to dwellings and/or dwelling units, as defined under the Zoning Ordinance, 
and shall include guesthouses.  
 
FAMILY-- One or more individuals related by blood, marriage, or adoption (including persons 
receiving formal foster care) or up to four (4) total unrelated individuals who maintain a 
common household and live within one Dwelling Unit, except as provided otherwise in the 
Code.  For this purpose, “related” shall mean persons who are related by blood, marriage, 
adoption, civil union recognized by any state, or formal foster relationship to result in one of the 
following relationships: spouse, brother, sister, parent, child, grandparent, great-grandparent, 
grandchild, great-grandchild, uncle, aunt, niece, nephew, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, parent-
in-law or first cousin.  “Step” relationships shall also be included, such as stepmother.  “Related” 
shall not include any relationship further than direct first cousins. 

 
Notwithstanding the above definition, a family shall also be deemed to include any number of 
mentally or physically disabled persons occupying a dwelling unit as a single, nonprofit 
housekeeping unit if such occupants are disabled persons as defined in Title VIII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988.  Such unrelated 
individuals shall have the right to occupy a Dwelling Unit in the same manner and to the same 
extent as any family unit as defined above. 
 
LOCAL CONTACT PERSON — A person or agent with actual authority to represent the Owner for 
purposes of contact and communication regarding the Owner’s Short-Term Rental.  A local 
contact person must be able to respond and arrive at the Short-Term Rental property within one 
hour of notice and must be authorized to act as a legal agent for the Owner.  If there is a change 
in the identity of the local contact person, the Borough must be notified, in writing, within 14 
days or prior to the Rental of the property if the Rental occurs within said fourteen-day period. 

 
SHORT-TERM RENTAL – Any Residential Dwelling Unit utilized as a single-family residence rented 
for the purpose of overnight lodging for a period of not less than one (1) day and not more than 
thirty (30) days and which is registered with the Adams County Treasurer’s Office in compliance 
with County Ordinance No. 3 of 2012 for the payment of Hotel Room Rental Tax, as may be 
reenacted or amended. 

 
SHORT-TERM RENTAL LICENSE – Permission granted by the Borough to utilize a Dwelling Unit for 
Short-Term Rental use. 

 
§ 204-5.  License Required.  
 
No Owner of any Premises in Carroll Valley Borough shall operate a Short-Term Rental in Carroll Valley 
Borough without first obtaining a Short-Term Rental License from the Code Enforcement Officer.  
Operation of a Short-Term Rental without a Short-Term Rental License is a violation of this Chapter. 
 
§ 204-6.  License Requirements. 
 

A. Application requirements.  Short-Term Rental License applications shall contain all of the 
following information: 

 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 4 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

1. The name, address, telephone number, and email address of the Owner.  If the Owner is not 
a full-time resident of the Borough of Carroll Valley or does not live or have a primary 
physical work address (beyond a post office box) within a twenty-mile radius of the Borough 
of Carroll Valley and within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, then the Owner shall 
designate a Person to serve as Manager who does reside or have a primary physical work 
headquarters (beyond a post office box) within a twenty-mile radius of the Borough of 
Carroll Valley.  If the Owner is a corporation, partnership, or similar entity, a Manager shall 
be appointed meeting to meet the above requirements.  If the Owner is not required to 
have or has not designated a Manager, then the Owner shall provide a 24-hour telephone 
number.  If the Owner uses a Manager, that Manager shall have written authorization to 
accept service for the Owner. 

 
2. The name, address, and 24-hour telephone number of the Manager. 

 
3. Floor plans for the Short-Term Rental, including total Total habitable floor space and total 

number of bedrooms for the short-term rental.. 
 

4. If the building is a multi-dwelling unit structure, the total number of dwelling units in the 
structure and the number of dwelling units being used as Short-Term Rentals.  Each 
Dwelling Unit in a multi-dwelling unit structure is required tomust have a separate Short-
Term Rental License. 

 

5. A site plan showing property lines, driveways, and all structures, including the location and 
number of on-site parking spaces.  An on-site inspection will be required to verify available 
parking spaces and consistency with the submitted site plan.  

 

6. If the property is not on the Borough Sewer system, the location, approximate age, and 
capacity of the sewage disposal system must be provided. This should include the location 
of the drain field and tanks.  

 
7. Septic system evaluation certifying the existing system is functioning as intended and proof 

the tank was pumped within the past three (3) years for approval by the Sewage 
Enforcement Officer.  An inspection of the on-lot sewage disposal system to verify 
consistency with the submitted site and floor plans may be required. 

 
8. Copies of the current Adams County Hotel Room Excise Tax Certificate and current 

Pennsylvania Sales and Use Tax License. 
 

9. Signatures of both the Owner and the Manager. 
 

10. Consent for inspection of the property by the Code Enforcement Officer to verify compliance with the 
conditions of the Short-Term Rental application. 
 

11.10. Trespass Waiver signed by the Owner allowing access to the Premises for the Code 
Enforcement Officer and the Rental Housing Inspector for the purpose of inspection to 
verify compliance with this Ordinance. 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 5 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

 
12.11. Copy of the current recorded Deed for the Premises establishing ownership. 

 
13.12. Evidence that there are no delinquent Borough sewer fees for all properties owned, in 

whole or in part, by the Owner in the Borough. 
 

14.13. A copy of a contract with a solid waste hauler to remove solid waste from the Short-
Term Rental Premises.  Short-Term Rental Premises are not included in the Borough’s 
municipal solid waste collection contract; Short-Term Rental Premises must have a private 
solid waste hauler with a weekly pick-up.  No dumpsters are permitted. Account verification 
is required. 

 
15.14. Evidence that there are no delinquent Adams County Hotel Room Excise Tax or 

Pennsylvania sales/use taxes due and owing with respect to Short-Term Rentals or on all 
properties owned, in whole or in part, by the Owner in the Borough. 

 
16. Certificate of Insurance evidencing that at least $500,000.00 in general liability insurance is 

in effect with respect to the Short-Term Rental, issued by an insurance company licensed to 
do business in Pennsylvania, which shall be maintained in full force and effect by the Owner 
for the entire period the Short-Term License is in effect. 

 
B. A Short-Term Rental License shall be issued only to the Owner of the Short-Term Rental 

Premises. 
 

1. A separate Short-Term Rental License is required for each Dwelling Unit; for two-family or 
multi-family dwellings, a separate License shall be required for each Dwelling Unit being 
used as a Short-Term Rental. 

 
2. A Short-Term Rental License is effective for a period of one (1) year or until any of the 

conditions of the Short-Term Rental which are governed by this Chapter are changed, 
whichever shall first occur.  A Short-Term Rental License must be renewed annually, and 
also when any of the conditions of the Short-Term Rental which are governed by this 
Chapter are changed. 

 
3. The Owner, by making an application for a Short-Term Rental License and/or accepting 

issuance of a Short-Term Rental License, grants permission for any and all inspections 
authorized by Section 204-10., below.this part. 

 
4. The Borough will prescribe forms and procedures for the processing of License applications 

under this Ordinance. 
 
§ 204-7.  Short-Term Rental Standards. 
 

A. Overnight occupancy of a Short-Term Rental shall be limited to no more than two (2) persons 
per bedroom plus four (4) additional persons. 
 

Number of Bedrooms Maximum Number of Occupants 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 6 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

2 8 

3 10 

4 12 

5 14 

 
B. The maximum number of day guests allowed at any one time, in addition to the overnight 

occupants, shall be fifty percent (50%) of the maximum overnight occupancy of the Short-Term 

Rental. 

 

C. C. For Short-Term Rentals using an on-site septic system, the number of bedrooms permitted for 

a Short-Term Rental shall not exceed the number of bedrooms approved for the Dwelling Unit 

on the sewage permit issued for such property. Where there is no sewage permit on record, the 

Short-Term Rental shall be limited to three (3) bedrooms unless proof is provided to the Sewage 

Enforcement Officer that the septic system is adequate to handle additional flows.  Any Short-

Term Rental advertising more than five (5) bedrooms shall provide proof that the septic system 

is adequate to handle such flows by having the system approved by the Sewage Enforcement 

Officer, or by providing a septic permit previously issued by a Sewage Enforcement Officer.  If a 

sewage system malfunction occurs, Short-Term Rental of the Dwelling Unit shall be discontinued 

until the malfunction is corrected in accordance with Borough and Pennsylvania Department of 

Environmental Protection requirements. 

D.C.  

E. Short-Term Rental of the dwelling unit is limited to the greater of 15 rental periods per calendar 

year or 180 nights in aggregate.  In the event that more than one dwelling unit is available for 

Short-Term Rental on a single property, this limit shall apply to the entire property, meaning 

that each rental period that any dwelling unit on the property is rented shall count as one rental 

period toward the fifteen-rental period limit, and each night that any dwelling unit on the 

property is rented shall count as one night toward the 180-night aggregate limit. 

 

F.D. Off-street parking areas for Short-Term Rental uses must meet the Zoning Ordinance 

requirements for single-family dwellings.  Day visitors must park in accordance with the 

applicable on-street parking requirements for that street.  Overnight guests must park in an 

approved off-street parking area, not on the street.  Any expansion of parking areas for a Short-

Term Rental requires prior Borough approval.  Parking areas shall be maintained in a mud-free 

condition with paving, stone, or similar material and shall count as part of the maximum lot 

coverage limits in Chapter 27. 

 
G.E. Short-Term Rental Premises are considered a commercial account in the Borough’s sanitary 

sewer collection service; Short-Term Rental Premises must have a separate commercial sanitary 
sewer account for each rental unit in addition to the main account foron the property. 
 

H.F. Neither Short-Term Rental Occupants nor guests shall engage in disorderly conduct or disturb 
the peace and quiet of any nearby neighborhood or person by loud, unusual, or excessive noise, 
by tumultuous or offensive conduct, public indecency, threatening, traducing, quarreling, 
challenging to fight, or fighting, or creating a dangerous or physically offensive condition. 

 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 7 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

I.G. The Owner shall use best efforts to assure that the Occupants or guests of the Short-Term 
Rental do not create unreasonable noise or disturbances, engage in disorderly conduct, or 
otherwise violate provisions of the Carroll Valley Borough Code of Ordinances or any state law 
pertaining to noise or disorderly conduct including, but not limited to, notifying the Occupants 
of the rules regarding Short-Term Rentals and responding when notified that occupants are 
violating laws, ordinances or regulations regarding their occupancy. 

 
J. The Owner shall, upon notification that Occupants or guests of the Short-Term Rental have 

created unreasonable noise or disturbances, engaged in disorderly conduct, or otherwise 
violated provisions of the Carroll Valley Borough Code of Ordinances or state law pertaining to 
noise or disorderly conduct, promptly use best efforts to prevent a recurrence of such conduct 
by those Occupants or guests. 

 
K.H. Overnight occupancy of recreational vehicles, camper trailers, and tents at the property 

where the Short-Term Rental is located shall not be allowed.  Outdoor overnight sleeping of 
occupants or guests of the Short-Term Rental is prohibited. 
 

L.I. A Short-Term Rental shall not have any outside appearance indicating a change of use from the 

surrounding residential uses.  There shall be no Eexterior advertising shall conform with the 

requirements of Chapter 27. 

 

M.J. All Short-Term Rentals shall have a clearly visible and legible notice posted within the 

dwelling unit on or adjacent to the front door containing the following information: 

 
1. The name of the Owner or the Manager of the unit and a telephone number at which that 

party can be reached on a 24-hour basis. 
 
2. The 911 address of the Premises. 
 
3. The maximum number of Occupants permitted to stay in the Dwelling Unit and the 

maximum number of day guests permitted at any one (1) time. 
 
4. The maximum number of all vehicles allowed to be parked on the Premises and the 

requirement that all overnight guest parking must be on the Premises and not in or along 
any private, community, or public street right-of-way or on any lawn or vegetated area on 
the property. 

 
5. Notification that an Occupant or guest may be cited and fined for creating a disturbance or 

for violating other provisions of the Carroll Valley Borough Code of Ordinances, including 
parking and occupancy limits. 

 

6. The trash pick-up day and notification that trash and refuse shall not be left or stored on the 
exterior of the propertyproperty’s exterior, including instructions for where and when to 
place the trash for pickup. 

7.6.  



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 8 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

8. Notification that Short-Term Rental Occupants and guests are required to make the dwelling 
unit available for inspection by the Code Enforcement Officer and/or Rental Housing 
Inspector upon request. 

 

N.K. All short-term rentals shall be equipped with the following: 
1. Smoke detectors in each bedroom; 
2. Smoke detectors outside each bedroom in common hallways; 
3. Smoke detectors on each floor; 
4. GFI outlets for outlets located within six feet of water source; 
5. Aluminum or metal exhaust from dryer, if provided for tenant use; 
6. Carbon monoxide detector if open flame (oil or gas) furnace, gas or wood fireplace, or 

wood-burning stove; 
7. Carbon monoxide detector, if garage is attached; 
8. Fire extinguisher in kitchen; 
9. Stairs (indoor and outdoor) in good condition; and 
10. Swimming pools, hot tubs and spas must meet the barrier requirements as required by the 

current edition of the International Residential CodePA Uniform Construction Code; and 
11. Any other occupancy requirements which may be added by ordinance revision by Borough 

Council. 
 

O.L. The Owner shall not enter into a rental agreement with a person under 18 years of age. 
 

P.M. Compliance with the requirements of this section shall be considered conditions of a 
short-term rental permit.  Violation of any of the requirements of this section shall be grounds 
for revocation of the short-term rental permit by the Code Enforcement Officer.  In the event 
that more than one short-term Rental is located on a single property, and any one short-term 
Rental is in violation of any of the requirements of this section, all permits associated with the 
property may be revoked. 
 

Q.N. The Owner must guarantee continued compliance with Chapter 10.  Any violation of 
Chapter 10 will may cause the revocation of the Short-term Rental Permit for a minimum of 12 
months, but no longer than 36 months, at the discretion of the Code Enforcement Officer.. 
 

 
§ 204-8.  Fees, Term, and Renewal. 
 

A. Short-Term Rental License fees, payable to the Borough upon the filing of a Short-Term Rental 
License application, shall be in such amount as may be established by resolution duly adopted 
by the Borough Council. (CVB averages $533 per occupied household in Earned Income Tax 
Revenue. For each Short-Term Rental, the Borough will lose this revenue.  Based upon the 
current costs anticipated to enforce this ordinance, I will be recommending to Borough Council a 
$250 annual fee.)   

 
B. Any Short-Term Rental License is valid for a period not to exceed one (1) year from the date of 

issuance and must be renewed annually.  Short-Term Rental License renewal fees, payable to 
the Borough upon the filing of a Short-Term Rental License renewal application, shall be in such 
amount as may be established by resolution duly adopted by the Borough Council. 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 9 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

 
1. Short-Term Rental License renewal shall require inspections outlined in Section 204-10 

below. 
 
2. Short-Term Rental License renewal applications shall contain information regarding any 

changes from the immediately preceding application with respect to matters governed by 
this Ordinance. 

 
§ 204-9.  Enforcement Officer. 
 

The Carroll Valley Borough Code Enforcement Officer and/or other appointed official shall 
conduct inspections, make reports and administer this Chapter, and issue notices of violation. 
 
The Code Enforcement Officer and/or other appointed official, with the authorization of the 
Borough Council, may engage the services of competent engineers or other consultants to 
determine the nature and extent of any violation. 

 
§ 204-10.  Annual Inspections Required. 
 

A. All Short-Term Rentals shall be subject to an annual inspection by the Code Enforcement Officer 
and the Rental Housing Inspector to verify application information, License, License renewal, 
and/or operating requirements.  All Short-Term Rentals shall be inspected to meet the full 
requirements of the Borough’s adopted Property Maintenance and Nuisance Codes. 

 
B. The issuance of a Short-Term Rental License or inspection is not a warranty that the Premises is 

lawful, safe, habitable, or in compliance with this Chapter of the Code of Ordinances.  Rather, 
the license indicates that the Premises are either set to be inspected on a routine basis or if 
inspected, the Premises met this Chapter of the Code of Ordinance requirements on the day and 
at the time of the inspection. 

 
C. If there is reason to believe that any provision of this Chapter is being violated, the Borough 

Council may or may cause, through an authorized representative of the Borough, entry onto 
Premises for the purpose of inspection of any and all Premises, properties, buildings and/or 
structures located within the Borough for ascertaining the existence of violations.  In those 
matters where the nature of an alleged violation is such that an inspection of the interior of a 
building or structure is necessitated, prior arrangements must be made with the Owner or agent 
to secure access thereof. 
 

D. C.  Within the limitations of federal and state law, the Code Enforcement Officer may apply to a 
Magisterial District Judge or any legal authority having jurisdiction for an administrative search 
warrant to enter and inspect a Short-Term Rental Unit and the Premises.  Such warrant is only 
required where access to a Short-Term Rental Unit or common areas is denied to the Code 
Enforcement Officer after a request to a person with a possessory interest in the regulated 
rental unit. 
 

 
§ 204-11.  Marketing. 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 10 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

 
The marketing of a Short-Term Rental in which the advertised occupancy exceeds the maximum 
occupancy requirements permitted by this Chapter or which promotes any other activity which is 
prohibited by this Chapter shall be a violation of this Chapter. 
 
§ 204-12.  Notice of Violation. 
 
If it appears to the Codean Enforcement Officer that a violation of this Chapter exists or has occurred, 
the Code Enforcement Officer shall send a written Notice of Violation to the Owner and/or Manager (if 
one is so designated) by personal delivery or by both United States first class and certified mail.  The 
Enforcement Notice shall identify the Premises which is the subject of the violation, enumerate the 
conditions which constitute the violation, cite the specific sections of this Chapter that are violated, 
indicate the action required to correct the violation, and provide a time frame (established by the Code 
Enforcement Officer based upon the nature of the violation) to correct the violation. 
 
§ 204-13.  Nuisance. 
 
In the interest of promoting public health, safety, and welfare and minimizing the burden on Borough 
and community services and impacts on community neighborhoods posed by Short-Term Rentals, a 
violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter is declared to be a public nuisance. 
  
§ 204-14.  Violations and penalties. 
 

A. This Chapter shall be enforced by action brought before a Magisterial District Judge in the same 
manner provided for the enforcement of summary offenses under the Pennsylvania Rules of 
Criminal Procedure.  Any Person, partnership, corporation, or other entity which violates or 
permits a violation of the provisions of this Chapter shall, upon conviction in a summary 
proceeding, pay a fine of not less than $100 nor more than $1,000 per violation, plus all court 
costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by Carroll Valley Borough in the enforcement 
proceedings, and/or be imprisoned to the extent allowed by law for the punishment of 
summary offenses.  Each day or portion thereof that a violation exists or continues shall 
constitute a separate violation.  Further, the appropriate officers or agents of Carroll Valley 
Borough are hereby authorized to seek equitable relief, including injunction, to enforce 
compliance with this Chapter.  All fines, penalties, costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees 
collected for the violation of this Chapter shall be paid to Carroll Valley Borough for its general 
use. 

 
B. In addition to, but not in limitation of, the provisions of the Part, the Code Enforcement Officer 

may either revoke or deny an application to renew a Short-Term Rental License for three (3) 
violations of this Chapter in any rolling twelve (12) calendar month period. 

 
C. The revocation or denial to renew a Short-Term Rental License shall continue for six (6) months 

for the first set of three (3) violations and continue for one (1) year for any subsequent sets of 
violations. 

 
§ 204-15.  Owner’s Severally Responsible. 
 



 
 

Short-Term Rentals Page 11 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
  Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

If more than one Owner owns the premises, each Owner shall jointly and severally be responsible for 
violations of this Chapter. 
 
§ 204-16.  Appeals. 
 
Appeals of a determination of the Code Enforcement Officer under this Chapter to deny any application 
for, or to renew, a Short-Term Rental License or to revoke a Short-Term Rental License shall be filed with 
the Zoning Hearing BoardBorough Council at the Borough business office within thirty (30) days of the 
date of the determination appealed from.  Appeals shall be processed as described in Section 1905. 
 
§ 204-17.  Severability. 
 
If any section, provision, or portion of this Ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by any 
Court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect any other section, clause, provision, or 
portion of this Ordinance so long as it remains legally enforceable minus the invalid portion.  The 
Borough reserves the right to amend this Ordinance or any portion thereof from time to time as it shall 
deem advisable in the best interest of the promotion of the purposes and intent of this Ordinance and 
the effective administration thereof. 
 
§ 204-18.  Repealer. 
 
All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances which are inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
§ 204-19.  Effective date. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon the earliest date provided by law.   

 

ORDAINED AND ENACTED as an Ordinance of the Borough of Carroll Valley this ___ day of ____ 20__. 

       

ATTEST:        CARROLL VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

____________________________             ______________________________________ 

Secretary          Council President 

 

     _______________________________________ 

        Mayor 

 
 



Short-Term Rentals Page 12 Original Draft date: May 24, 2023 
 Revised: July 25, 2023September 27, 2023 

CERTIFICATION OF ADOPTION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was advertised in the Gettysburg Times, a newspaper of 
general circulation in the Borough, on ________________, and was duly enacted and approved at a  
meeting of the Borough Council of the Borough of Carroll Valley on__________________________. 

Gayle Marthers 
Assistance Borough Manager / Borough Secretary 


	PC Agenda - October 2, 2023
	Borough of Carroll Valley
	A g e n d a

	PC Minutes - September 5, 2023
	chicken memo PC OCT 2023
	CVB Short Term Rental Ordinance Proposed 9272023 dah modified



